9747-1

No. 69747-1-I

### COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION ONE

ANH-THU THI VU,

Appellant

v.

VINH QUOC DANG,

Respondent

ON APPEAL FROM KING COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT (The Honorable John Erlick)

ANH-THU THI VU'S OPENING BRIEF

Anh-Thu Thi Vu, Pro Se

126 SW 148th St. Ste C100 PMB #459 Seattle, WA 98166



###

#### I. INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal of a marital dissolution. My name is Anh-Thu Thi Vu. My former husband, Vinh Dang, and I were married in Orange County, California on September 2, 2006. A dissolution decree was entered by the King County Superior Court on November 30, 2012.

Before we were married, on May 15, 2006, in California, Mr. Dang had me sign a pre-nuptial agreement. I was born in Viet Nam and English is my second language. Mr. Dang hired an attorney to prepare this agreement. I never saw a draft before I signed it. Mr. Dang did not provide me with any documents to verify his assets or income, such as a tax return or pay stub. Mr. Dang arranged for an attorney to represent me, but the document was never translated into Vietnamese for me and I was told that I had to sign it or we would not get married. Mr. Vinh Dang also put that in his declaration.

In November of 2006, I moved into Mr. Dang's house in the state of Washington. During the years we were married, I suffered regular physical and emotional abuse at the hands of my husband. This abuse had and continues to have a serious negative effect on my health. He threw hot coffee in my face. He spit into my face. He was also controlling and unfaithful. As an example of the limits he set on me, when I moved in, he forced me to store most of my belongings in the basement where he

would not let me access them. I was allowed to have only a few of my personal possessions. No wedding gifts were to be opened. After three years, he finally allowed me to display only one small wedding photo. I had to ask permission to touch anything in the house. I was not allowed to use his telephone or his computer. He was hiding things from me. Not telling me about his income or assets was dishonorable and disrespectful. Judge Erlick did not read the portions of my trial brief and declaration in which I detailed the physical and emotional abuse.

The frequency and intensity of disagreements increased over time. His abuse of pornography and alcohol became daily. He told me he was working on the computer when in fact he was watching pornography. He told me he was going on a business trip when in fact he was meeting another woman, a hair stylist, in Florida. I flew to Florida to confront him, but he only became more abusive.

During the dissolution trial, I believe Judge Erlick was unfair and biased against me as a result of receiving an October 31, 2012 letter from another judge in the Superior Court. I had to leave court on October 17, 2012, because I was sick. At the time I left the courtroom, I understood that court was to be in recess for the rest of the day. However, two days later, on October 19, 2012, my attorney gave me a copy of an order that Judge Erlick had entered on October 17, 2012, after I left the courtroom.

This order required me to leave my husband's house by December 1, 2012, while a temporary restraining order was still in effect. Apparently my lawyer and my husband's lawyer had agreed December 1, 2012 as the date for me to leave the house without me being present in the courtroom. I complained to the King County Superior Court about an order having been entered on October 17, 2012, when I thought court was in recess, and I believe Judge Erlick was biased against me as a result of my complaining. I do not believe he read my trial brief or declarations, which included details of my husband's dishonorable behavior. Also, I was threatened and controlled by my attorney, Sharon Friedrich.

#### II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- The trial court erred when it found that service of the summons and petition on me was proper. Finding of Fact 2.2.
- The trial court erred when it found that we separated on April 30, 2011. Finding of Fact 2.5.
- 3. The trial court erred when it found that 90 days had elapsed since service of the summons. Finding of Fact 2.6.
- 4. The trial court erred when it found that the prenuptial agreement should be approved. Finding of Fact 2.7.

- 5. The trial court erred when it found that the husband and wife had separate property as set forth in Exhibit H and Exhibit W. Finding of Fact 2.9. Decree ¶¶ 3.2 and 3.3.
- 6. The trial court erred when it found that maintenance should not be ordered for the wife. Finding of Fact 2.10. Decree ¶ 3.7.
- 7. The trial court erred when it found that the wife was intransigent and awarded fees to the husband. Finding of Fact 2.15. Decree ¶¶ 3.5, 3.13.
- 8. The trial court erred when it did not allow the wife to be reimbursed for the hotel bill, the alarm installation, the cost to change locks, and the wife's medical expense. Finding of Fact 2.21.
- The trial court erred when it allowed the wife only one half the cost of the heating oil. Finding of Fact 2.21.
- The trial court erred when it awarded the husband \$8,000
   in attorney fees. Finding of Fact 2.21.
- 11. The trial court erred when it did not order Mr. Dang to provide a billing statement to show the precise dollar amount for the utility overpayment reimbursement. Conclusion of Law 3.8.

#### III. ISSUES

- Whether service of the summons and petition was proper when Mr. Dang's brother and sister brought them to me at the Seattle home and demanded that I sign the divorce papers. (Assignment of Error
   1.)
- Whether the finding that the parties separated on April 30,
   is supported by substantial evidence. (Assignment of Error 2.)
- 3. Whether 90 days had elapsed since service of the summons when service was improper. (Assignment of Error 3.)
- 4. Whether the stipulation to approve the prenuptial agreement was valid when the wife was very sick the day of the stipulation, threatened by her attorney, and Judge Erlick was angry with the wife for writing a letter to the Superior Court about his order entered October 17, 2012. (Assignment of Error 4.)
- 5. Whether the finding that the parties had separate property as set forth in Exhibits H and W is supported by substantial evidence and is valid when the stipulation to approve the prenuptial agreement was itself invalid. (Assignments of Error 4 and 5.)
- 6. Whether the trial court abused its discretion when it found that the wife did not need to spend \$800 per month for food, \$200 a month for personal expenses including haircuts, \$300 a month for a cell

phone, put \$950 a month into savings, rent an apartment for \$1600 a month, and failed to consider the state of Ms. Vu's health, and did not take into account the significant benefit Mr. Dang received from Ms. Vu's cleaning and maintaining of the house and garden. (Assignment of Error 6.)

- 7. Whether the trial court's finding of intransigence is supported by substantial evidence when the wife did not hide assets and was not given adequate opportunity to testify. (Assignment of Error 7.)
- 8. Whether the trial court's failure to award the wife reimbursement for the hotel bill, the alarm installation, the cost to change locks, and her medical expense was an abuse of discretion when Judge Erlick was angry with Ms. Vu for writing a letter to the Superior Court about his improper entry of the order on October 17, 2012, and did not read her declaration. (Assignment of Error 8.)
- Whether the trial court's award to the wife of only one half the cost of the heating oil is supported by substantial evidence.
   (Assignment of Error 9.)
- 10. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in awarding the husband \$8,000 in attorney fees when the wife did not hide assets, was not intransigent, Judge Erlick said that the wife was not qualified to speak and she therefore had insufficient opportunity to testify before the

court, and her attorney did not proactively advocate for her. (Assignment of Error 10.)

11. Whether the trial court abused its discretion when it did not order Mr. Dang to provide a utility billing statement so that a precise dollar amount for the wife's utility reimbursement could be determined.

(Assignment of Error 11.)

#### IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

My name is Anh-Thu Thi Vu, the Appellant, and I was born in Viet Nam.<sup>1</sup> English is my second language.<sup>2</sup> I did not meet Mr. Vinh Dang for the first time until in 2004 in California.<sup>3</sup>

I work at the Social Security Administration,<sup>4</sup> where I use standard forms in English and simple English when talking to the public.<sup>5</sup>

On May 15, 2006, in California, before we were married, Mr. Dang had me sign a pre-nuptial agreement.<sup>6</sup> Mr. Dang hired an attorney to prepare this agreement, Elayne Medlovitz.<sup>7</sup> I never saw a draft before I

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> RP 320:19-20 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> RP 320:23-24 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> RP 320:25-321:1 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> RP 356:20-21 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 15, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> RP 212:2-17 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, October 16, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> RP 323:2-325:14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 47:20-21 (Vinh Dang, October 15, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> RP 253:1-9 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 49:22-50:7 (Vinh Dang, October 15, 2012)

signed it and in fact I signed it the same day that I first saw it.<sup>8</sup> Mr. Dang did not provide me with any documents to verify his assertions about his assets, and the same with his income, such as a tax return or pay stub.<sup>9</sup> Mr. Dang said that he had an attorney for me, Mr. Matthew Shahon.<sup>10</sup> I met with Mr. Shahon at Vinh Dang's request, and the meeting lasted less than an hour.<sup>11</sup> The pre-nuptial agreement was never translated into Vietnamese for me<sup>12</sup> and I was told that I had to sign it or we would not get married.<sup>13</sup> Mr. Shahon never explained the pre-nuptial agreement to me, and I signed it because at that time I trusted Mr. Vinh Dang.<sup>14</sup> Mr. Dang asserted that he e-mailed a copy to me, but this was from an account that Mr. Dang set up for me, including the password, such that I never had control of it.<sup>15</sup> Also, the copy of the e-mail he attached to his declaration did not even show an attachment.<sup>16</sup>

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> RP 323:2-325:14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 259:3-262:5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> RP 323:2-325:14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 259:3-262:5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> RP 253:15-254:9 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 323:2-325:14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 259:3-262:5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 50:1-11 (Vinh Dang, October 15, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> RP 323:2-8 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2102); RP 259:3-262:5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> RP 325:7-9 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> RP 323:2-325:14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012). RP 259:3-262:5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012). CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Declaration of Mr. Vinh Dang dated Dec. 6, 2011, sub #26.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> RP 325:10-326:10 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> RP 322:6-19 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2102).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated September 24, 2012, sub #83.

Mr. Dang, and I were married in Orange County, California on September 2, 2006.<sup>17</sup> In November of 2006, I moved into Mr. Dang's house in the state of Washington.<sup>18</sup> During the years we were married, I suffered regular physical and emotional abuse at the hands of my husband. I finally had to get a restraining order.<sup>19</sup> This abuse had and continues to have a serious negative effect on my health following the marriage.<sup>20</sup> He threw hot coffee in my face.<sup>21</sup> He spit into my face.<sup>22</sup> He drove me by a two story vacant building in disrepair and told me that this was where I deserved to live; I was terrified and in fear and I slipped and feel on the stairs bruising my head and back, but my husband did not help me up.<sup>23</sup>

He was also controlling, intimidating, and unfaithful. As an example of the limits he set on me, when I moved in, he forced me to put most of my remaining belongings in the basement where he never let me unpack them.<sup>24</sup> He had already told me that I could not bring any of my

-

<sup>17</sup> CP 14.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> RP 327:2-5 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Temporary Restraining Order entered December 21, 2011, sub #39.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> RP 326:11-12 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012); RP 336:7-19 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Motion/Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated November 15, 2011, sub #6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated September 24, 2012, sub #83.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> RP 329:22-330:3 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

furniture from California, and so before I moved I gave away my furniture, my TV, my dishes, and my cookware.<sup>25</sup> I was allowed to have only a few of my personal possessions.<sup>26</sup> No wedding gifts were to be opened, including cashing of checks received.<sup>27</sup> I had to ask permission to pick any fruit from the garden.<sup>28</sup> If we brought food home from a restaurant, I had to eat it out of whatever it came in; I could not transfer it to a plate.<sup>29</sup> He forbade me from asking about his income and would not show me his paystubs, W-2s, or income tax filings.<sup>30</sup> Around his family, he made sure that they knew he "owns me" and he made sure I acted as "housekeeper" in their presence.<sup>31</sup> He threw hot coffee at me.<sup>32</sup>

The frequency and intensity of disagreements increased over time; his abuse of pornography and alcohol became daily.<sup>33</sup> He would watch pornography on the computer.<sup>34</sup> When I asked him to stop viewing pornography and get some rest, he would throw furniture.<sup>35</sup> He told me

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> RP 329:9-21 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>26</sup> Id

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> RP 330:8 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> RP 330:11-13 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> RP 330:16-20 (Anh-Thu thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Motion/Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated November 15, 2011, sub #6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> *Id*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated September 24, 2012, sub #83.

<sup>33</sup> Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>34</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated September 24, 2012, sub #83.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>35</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Motion/Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated November 15, 2011, sub #6.

he was going on a business trip when in fact he was meeting another woman, a hair stylist, in Florida.<sup>36</sup> He bought gifts for her.<sup>37</sup> I flew to Florida to confront him and the woman, but he only became more abusive.<sup>38</sup>

Mr. Dang petitioned for dissolution on November 10, 2011.<sup>39</sup> The court entered a series of restraining orders, including one on December 21, 2011; I was to continue living in the house, but Mr. Vinh Dang was restrained.<sup>40</sup> This restraining order stated, "Wife to pay all utilities on the home and general upkeep/repair in current condition."<sup>41</sup> It did not however require me to pay any rent.

I was deposed on April 30, 2012. I had serious trouble with my health during April 2012 and had been to the emergency room on April 7, 9, 12, 14, 18, 19, and 26.<sup>42</sup> When I was asked about my deposition

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> RP 336:21-22 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Motion/Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated November 15, 2011, sub #6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>38</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Motion/Declaration of Anh-Thu Thi Vu dated November 15, 2011, sub #6.
<sup>39</sup> CP 1-4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>40</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Restraining Order and Order to Show Cause entered November 15, 2011, sub #13).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>41</sup> CP, pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Temporary Restraining Order entered December 21, 2011, sub #13.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>42</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, sealed medical and health records of Anh-Thu Thi Vu,sub #82.

during trial, I made the point that during the deposition I was very sick and very shaky.<sup>43</sup>

I had to leave court on October 17, 2012, because I was sick.<sup>44</sup> At the time I left the courtroom, based on what Judge Erlick said, I understood that court was to be in recess for the rest of the day.<sup>45</sup> My attorney then took me to the emergency room.<sup>46</sup>

Later, I found out that Judge Erlick had entered, on October 17, 2012, after I left the courtroom, an order. This order required me to leave my husband's house by December 1, 2012, even though the temporary restraining order was still in effect. Apparently my lawyer and my husband's lawyer and Judge Erlick agreed that December 1, 2012, would be the date for me to leave the house, and they did this without me being present in the courtroom. I complained to the King County Superior Court Presiding Judge, Judge McDermott, in e-mail dated October 24, 2012, about Judge Erlick entering an order on October 17, 2012, when I thought court was in recess.

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>43</sup> RP 262:12-14 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>44</sup> RP 223:18-20; 224:4-21; 225:13-19; 226:10-14 (October 17, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>45</sup> RP 224:7-16 (October 17, 2012) ("THE COURT: All right. Let's take a brief recess. Ms. Friedrich, why don't you advise the Court whether we can proceed. Take a recess.") <sup>46</sup> RP 224:15-18 (October 17, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>47</sup> CP pending supplemental designation of clerk's papers, Order to Vacate Home entered October 17, 2012, sub #82.

<sup>\*°</sup> Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>49</sup> RP 237:2-238:16 (October 17, 2012).

On November 14, 2012, my former attorney Ms. Friedrich tried to raise the issue of my testifying as to my health before the court.<sup>50</sup> However, Judge Erlick said that I was not qualified to testify about my own health.<sup>51</sup> Judge Erlick was interested in finishing the trial quickly.<sup>52</sup>

I was also sick when the parties stipulated to the approval of the asset and liability portion of the pre-nuptial agreement. This stipulation occurred during trial on November 15, 2012. Again in November at the time of trial, I was sick and weak, and my attorney had previously, on October 25, 2011, threatened me saying she was going to ask the judge to bring in a representative for me because of my poor health. Present in the room when my attorney threatened me were her paralegal Sophia Sanchez and another attorney named Lisa DuFour. And so during trial I just said yes to everything.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> RP 331:7-334:4 (November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> RP 333:14-24 (November 14, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>52</sup> See for example RP 224:25-225:1 (October 17, 2012) ("Well, we need to complete this case, so we're going to complete this case."); RP 404:5-6 (November 15, 2012) ("Counsel, we have until noon today, so how do we want to finish this up?") RP 251:8-9 (November 14, 2012) ("So it sounds to me as though we can probably get this case finished today, is my expectation."); RP 408:17-19 (November 15, 2012) ("Counsel, we're running out of time. I'm giving this case until noon today so I think we need to wrap this up."); RP 420:6-8 (November 15, 2012) ("Counsel, we're running out of time. Anything that's urgent that needs to get before the Court?); RP 422:4-6 (November 15, 2012 ("I have a 4 o'clock hearing, so we'll have you out of here. I expect my decision will be extremely brief."); RP 339:1-4 (November 14, 2012) ("I can give you half a day tomorrow and that is it. So if you want any closing arguments, I would suggest you leave yourself some time for that. We will be concluded by noon tomorrow.")

<sup>53</sup> RP 389:20-391:21 (November 15, 2012).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>54</sup> RP 270:22-24 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012) ("Q. Would you agree that your health today is also not perfect? A. Yes."); RP 336:7-19 (Anh-Thu Thi Vu, November 14, 2012).

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