I. INTRODUCTION 

This case involves a short term marriage of few issues. The parties 

stipulated during trial to the entry of mutual restraining orders. (RP 473). 

The parties stipulated during trial to enforcement of a prenuptial 

agreement to govern the division of assets and liabilities. (RP 390-391) 

The only issues decided by the trial court were 1) the date of the 

parties separation, 2) whether there was a need and ability to pay spousal 

maintenance, 3) whether there was a need and ability to pay attorney's 

fees, 4) reimbursements to the wife for various costs she incurred 

personally during her occupation of husband's house and 5) whether the 

wife was intransigent in making various misrepresentations to the court 

regarding her available assets before and during trial. 

Of the eleven assignments of error, the court made decisions 

regarding only five issues presented by the appellant. The balance of 

issues were decided on the open record by stipulation (whether there 

should be a restraining order, whether the prenuptial should be enforced as 

to division of assets and liabilities) or were not raised by the appellant 

below (adequacy of service, 90 day wait between service and decree, 

judicial bias). The appellant has made multiple allegations in her briefing 

which are not contained anywhere in the record or in the court proceeding. 

The court should impose sanctions against the appellant for improperly 

asserting allegations which are not contained in the record. 
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II. RESTATEMENT OF ISSUES 

1) Whether service was proper when the wife was personally 

served at home and she failed to ever contest the issue at or before trial? 

2) Whether the date of separation was properly at the time the 

respondent stopped sleeping in the home, and told appellant he wanted a 

divorce even though he returned to the home at times during the day to 

care for the house and yard? 

3) Whether the wife cites any basis to set aside her stipulation to 

enforce the prenuptial agreement as to the division of assets and liabilities, 

made knowingly with the advice of counsel and the assistance of an 

interpreter in open court, on the record? 

4) Whether the wife demonstrated any need for spousal 

maintenance given the short duration of the marriage and that she was able 

to still save money and meet reasonable living expenses as established 

during the marriage with the same job she held before she was married? 

5) Whether the wife was properly denied personal living expenses 

when she was denied spousal maintenance? 

6) Whether it was proper for the court to award husband attorney 's 

fees for wife ' s intransigence where she misrepresented significant savings 

she accumulated during marriage which required husband to spend two 

court days documenting the monies she removed from bank accounts and 

reduced to cashier' s checks at separation? 

7) Whether fees are proper on appeal pursuant to RAP 18.9? 
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III. REST A TEMENT OF THE CASE 

This is a dissolution of marriage case. The parties married in 

September, 2006, and separated in April, 2011 when Mr. Dang began 

sleeping away from the home. (RP 85:3, RP 284:19-20). The husband, 

Mr. Dang [hereafter Dang] filed for divorce November 10, 2011. (CP 1). 

Dang is a traffic engineer working for the Washington State Department 

of Transportation. (RP 252:12-14) The wife, Ms. Vu [hereafter Vu] 

works in customer service for the Social Security Administration. (RP 48) 

Although Vietnamese is her first language, she does not use a Vietnamese 

interpreter at work for use with her customers. (RP 154: 1-25; 211-212). 

Both parties are originally from Vietnan1. (RP 43) Both parties obtained 

college degrees from American Universities. (RP 112:3-13,212:17-19). 

Both parties came to the United States through a refugee program in 1975. 

(RP 43, 122-123) They met through a common friend who scheduled a 

reunion of the students who had previously attended Paris College in 

Dallas, Texas. (RP44:7-8). The husband was 55 years old at the time of 

trial. (RP 42: 15) He has an adult son from a previous relationship who 

attends medical school in Australia. (RP 110) 

The husband proposed that the parties enter a prenuptial agreement 

prior to marriage. (RP 47:20-21) At that time, the husband was still 

assisting his son through college and he didn't want to worry about 
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accounting to his wife for money he was paying to help his son through 

college. (RP 47: 22 - RP48:1-3). 

The parties lived in different states at the time they became 

affianced. (RP 44) They did not reside together prior to marriage. Dang 

lived in Washington State. (RP 44:14) Vu lived in the state of California. 

(RP 44: 11) Dang engaged a California attorney to assist him in preparing 

the prenuptial agreement. (RP 48 :21-25). When faced with the option of 

a Washington or California prenuptial agreement, he sought to make 

access to counsel easier for Vu, who resided in California. (RP 49:9-11) 

Vu hired a second attorney to represent her (RP 50: 1-14, Exhibit 1.) The 

parties discussed between themselves some of the provisions of the 

prenuptial agreement prior to execution. (RP 56:7-25, RP 57: 1-11, Ex. 

14). Both parties signed the prenuptial agreement and both their 

respective counsel signed the prenuptial agreement indicating that they 

had reviewed the agreement with their respective clients. (RP 61: 10). 

Within the agreement, both parties listed their respective separate 

assets, including real estate, bank accounts, investment accounts and 

retirement as exhibit attachments. (RP 51, Ex 1: Exhibits A & B) The 

agreement provided that each party would keep their paychecks as 

separate property, but that they would create a combined community 

account into which they would deposit money for community spending. 

(RP 51 , Ex 1: 4, paragraph 4.1) During the marriage, the parties created a 

joint account where they deposited monthly an equal sum of money for 
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community savings and spending. (RP 100-103). Because the parties 

were residing in Dang' s home, he paid all the regular home maintenance 

expenses, including any debts against the home, repair of the home or 

upkeep from his personal savings. (RP 150, EX 49, 199, 420: 15-17). The 

parties used the joint account where they were both depositing a portion of 

their income for utilities and for food. (RP 97: 6-10, RP 276: 17-21, Ex. 

34, 35, 36,37) They saved jointly approximately $18,000.00 in that 

account during the marriage, which the court divided evenly on divorce. 

(CP21). 

Because the prenuptial agreement allowed each party to keep their 

own pay check, Vu was able to accumulate roughly $90,000.00 in savings 

during the marriage, in addition to putting money into a deferred 

compensation account, as well as into FERS, a defined benefit account. 

(RP 379-382, 384-385). Her consolidated accounts just after filing 

without retirement totaled more than $160,000.00 which she reduced to 

cashier' s checks. (RP 379-382, Ex 39: 79-81). For the temporary orders 

hearing, she failed to disclose these cashier' s checks as "cash on hand" or 

other liquid asset. (EX 48: 3) When this was later brought to the court's 

attention, she remained vague about how much money she had actually 

put into cashier' s checks. (RP 314-315). 

The husband had a defined benefit account through his 

employment with the State of Washington. (RP 115-116, Ex 10) He 

accumulated no additional savings during marriage, and in fact depleted 
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some of his previous separate savings between the date of marriage and 

the date of separation, as well as incurring debt against his separate 

property home (RP 91-93). Additionally, he did reduce some previously 

owed family debt. 

Mr. Dang attempted to engage in a collaborative dissolution of 

marriage. (RP 170). Roughly four months after broaching the subject of 

divorce, he sought to file the dissolution action pro se. (CP 1) 

He arranged to have his brother and sister give the divorce 

paperwork to his wife while she was at the residence. (RP 170, CP 61-

62). After Vu was served with the paperwork, she went out to hire an 

attorney and made accusations against him and obtained, without notice to 

him, or to the attorney who had written a letter regarding collaborative 

divorce, an ex parte restraining order preventing him from returning home. 

(RP 170, CP 63-66) He was shocked by her accusations which he asserted 

were false and made to retaliate against him for filing for divorce. (RP 

170) 

The parties agreed to mutual restraining orders during the 

dissolution of marriage and post dissolution. (RP 173) The parties 

agreed to enforce the prenuptial agreement as to division of assets and 

liabilities. (RP 390-391) 

IV. RESPONSIVE ARGUMENT 

A. The appellant bears the burden of proving that findings are not 
supported by substantial evidence, and that the court abused its discretion 
in applying the law. 
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The appellant bears the burden of proving any error in an action to 

overturn trial court decisions made pursuant to a dissolution of marriage. 

The court is to view the evidence in the light most favorable to the 

prevailing party on matters of witness credibility and conflicting 

testimony. Hegwine v. Longview Fibre Co., 132 Wn. App. 546, 556 

(2007). Findings made by the court to which error is assigned are 

reviewed only to determine if the findings are supported by substantial 

evidence. Id. at 555-556. Arguments that are not supported by pertinent 

authority, references to the record, or meaningful analysis should not be 

considered. RAP 1O.3(a); Cowiche Canyon Conservancy v. Bosley, 118 

Wn. 2d 801 (1992) (arguments not supported by authority); State v. Elliott, 

114 Wn. 2d 6, 15 (1990)(insufficient argument); Saunders v. Lloyd 's of 

London, 113 Wn.2d 330, 345 (1989) (issues unsupported by adequate 

argument or authority); State v. Camarillo, 54 Wn.App. 821, 829 (1989) 

(no references to the record). 

Distributions of property are seldom changed on appeal, and the 

appellant bears the heavy burden of proving an abuse of discretion by the 

trial court. In re Marriage of Landry, 105 Wash.2d 807, 809-810 (1985);. 

The trial court is in the best position to determine what is fair and 

equitable and has broad discretion in distributing property in dissolution 

proceedings. In re Marriage of Brewer, 137 Wn.2d 756, 769 (1999). The 

trial court may consider the property division when determining 

maintenance, and may consider maintenance in making an equitable 
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division of the property. In re Marriage of Estes, 84 Wn.App. 586, 593 

(1997). The spouse alleging error bears the burden of showing an abuse of 

discretion on the part ofthe trial court. In re Marriage of Sheffer, 60 Wn. 

App. 51, 56 (1990). 

1) Service of process was proper when Ms. Vu was handed copies 
of the Summons and Petition at her residence by a person of suitable age, 
not a party- the affirmative defense of insufficient service was waived 
when it was not challenged below. 

Service of process in this case was made to Ms. Vu personally at 

her residence. (CP 61-62) She never disputed service of process and in 

fact, responded to the petition. (CP 5-7) RCW 4.28.080 states: 

§ 4.28.080. Summons, how served 

Service made in the modes provided in this 
section is personal service. The summons shall be 
served by delivering a copy thereof, as follows: 

*** 

(15) In all other cases, to the defendant personally, 
or by leaving a copy of the summons at the house of 
his or her usual abode with some person of suitable 
age and discretion then resident therein. 

In this matter Ms. Vu was handed summons and petition for 

dissolution of marriage personally where she then resided. (CP 61-62) 

She admits this in her argument and cites to a case wherein the issue was 

that the defendant was not served at her residence, which is defined by 

case law as the "center of domestic activity." Streeter-Dybdahl v. Nguyet 

Huynh, 157 Wn. App. 408, 236 P.3d 986, 2010 Wash. App. LEXIS 1792 

(Wash. Ct. App. 2010). Ms. Vu never alleges a different residence or 
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different center of domestic activity. Ms. Vu makes numerous other 

allegations that are not supported by the record, nor relevant to the issue of 

service of process. It is difficult to glean from what Ms. Vu does assert, 

her specific objection to service. 

In certain circumstances, the affirmative defense of insufficient 

service of process may be waived as a matter of law. The waiver can occur 

in two ways: (1) "the defendant's assertion of the defense is inconsistent 

with the defendant's previous behavior" or (2) "the defendant's counsel has 

been dilatory in asserting the defense." Lybbert v. Grant County, 141 

Wn.2d 29, 39, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000). Blankenship v. Kaldor, 114 Wn. App. 

312, 319 (2002). Although in this case, service was proper, and Vu fails 

to outline or articulate in what way she was deprived of sufficiency of 

process, she has most certainly waived the defense by her conduct. 

After being served, Vu immediately secured an attorney, and filed 

a motion for a temporary restraining order. (CP 48) Vu then filed a 

response to the petition. (CP 5-7) She never pursued the affirmative 

defense of lack of process during the course of the case, she engaged in 

discovery during the case, responded to a motion for summary judgment 

and additionally went through trial without ever asserting lack of process 

as an affirmative defense. Her assertion of such a defense here is 

frivolous and completely lacks merit. 

2. There was no evidence of bias by the Court against Ms. Vu, 
there was never any motion asking Judge Erlick to recuse himself due to 
bias, and moreover, the Court conducted a fair and impartial trial. 
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At no time prior to, or during the trial, did Ms. Vu ever assert that 

the Court was in any way biased against her. Having failed to raise the 

issue below, she should be held to have waived it on appeal. Marriage 0/ 

Wallace, 111 Wn.App. 697 (2002). A party may not speculate upon what 

rulings the court will make on propositions involved in the case and, if the 

rulings do not happen to be in the party's favor, then for the first time raise 

the issue on appeal. In re Welfare o/Carpenter, 21 Wn. App. 814, 820, 

587 P.2d 588 (1978). 

Additionally, there is no evidence in the record that Judge Erlick's 

conduct was biased or appeared unfair towards Ms. Vu. "To prevail 

under the appearance of fairness doctrine, the claimant must provide some 

evidence of the judge's ... actual or potential bias[,]" State v. Dugan, 96 

Wn. App. 346, 354, 979 P.2d 885 (1999); prejudice is not presumed, State 

v. Dominguez, 81 Wn. App. 325, 328-30, 914 P.2d 141 (1996). "The test is 

whether a reasonably prudent and disinterested observer would conclude 

[that the claimant] obtained a fair, impartial, and neutral trial." 

Dominguez, 81 Wn. App. at 330. In addition, the court is to consider 

allegedly improper or biased comments in context. See Wells v. Whatcom 

County Water Dist. No. 10,105 Wn. App. 143, 158, 19 P.3d 453 (2001); 

In re Dependency o/OJ, 88 Wn. App. 690,697,947 P.2d 252 (1997), 

review denied, 135 Wn.2d 1002, 959 P.2d 126 (1998). 

Throughout the several days of trial, Judge Erlick made multiple 

accommodations to Ms. Vu regarding her poor health, which was actually 
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rooted in anxiety. This anxiety seemed to have developed after the 

divorce was filed. (CP 339-343) The court adjourned on the third day of 

trial completely, even though the court ' s trial calendar was busy, giving 

Ms. Vu a continuance for several weeks to allow her to seek treatment for 

having panicked during direct examination. (RP 235). The court allowed 

Ms. Vu to take frequent breaks based upon her counsel ' s representation 

that this would assist Ms. Vu in tolerating the trial days. (RP 249) The 

court allowed Ms. Vu to testify from counsel table during cross 

examination, rather than sitting in the witness stand. (RP 269). Although 

the court did want the case to progress, Judge Erlick encouraged both 

sides equally to move their cases along, not just Ms. Vu. (RP 158, RP 

291). It should be noted that the case had already been pending for ten 

months by the time the actual day of trial arrived. 

In fact, there is no evidence in the record or the file , nor in any post 

trial motions, as to any letters drafted by Ms. Vu to the Chief Civil Judge, 

or from the Chief Civil Judge to Judge Erlick commenting on this case. If 

such letters existed, they were not shared with Mr. Dang. There is simply 

no evidence in the record of any such letters. However, even if such 

correspondence did occur, Ms. Vu herself cannot create a basis for bias in 

a judge once she has accepted that judge and once he has made a decision 

in the case. In Mayberry v. Pennsylvania, 400 U.S. 455, 463 , 91 S. Ct. 

499, 27 L. Ed. 2d 532 (1971), the United States Supreme Court addressed 

the problem presented by the continued participation of a judge who feels 
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he has been attacked. The court observed, " [W]e do not say that the more 

vicious the attack on the judge the less qualified he is to act. A judge

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